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STATEMENT OF CLAIM

TO THE DEFENDANTS:

A LEGAL PROCEEDING HAS BEEN COMMENCED AGAINST YOU by the plaintiffs.
The claim made against you is set out in the following pages.

IF YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, you or an Ontario lawyer acting for you
must prepare a statement of defence in Form 18A prescribed by the Rules of Civil Procedure, serve
it on the plaintiffs’ lawyer or, where the plaintiffs do not have a lawyer, serve it on the plaintiffs, and
file it, with proof of service, in this court office, WITHIN TWENTY DAYS after this statement of
claim is served on you, if you are served in Ontario.



If you are served in another province or territory of Canada or in the United States of America,
the period for serving and filing your statement of defence is forty days. If you are served outside
Canada and the United States or America, the period is sixty days.

Instead of serving and filing a statement of defence, you may serve and file a notice of intent
to defend Form 18B prescribed by the Rules of Civil Procedure. This will entitle you to ten more
days within which to serve and file your statement of defence.

IF YOU FAIL TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN
AGAINST YOU IN YOUR ABSENCE AND WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE TO YOU. If you
wish to defend this proceeding but are unable to pay legal fees, legal aid may be available to you by
contacting a local Legal Aid office.

IF YOU PAY THE PLAINTIFFS’ CLAIM, and $85,000 for costs, within the time for serving
and filing your statement of defence you may move to have this proceeding dismissed by the court.
If you believe the amount claimed for costs is excessive, you may pay the plaintiff’s claim and $400
for costs and have the costs assessed by the court.

TAKE NOTICE: THIS ACTION WILL AUTOMATICALLY BE DISMISSED if it has not
been set down for trial or terminated by any means within five years after the action was commenced
unless otherwise ordered by the court.
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Crown Law Office — Civil
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AND TO: Deputy Solicitor General (Community Safety) Mario Di Tommaso
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AND TO: Deputy Attorney General Paul Boniferro
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AND TO: Steve Orsini
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CLAIM
1. The plaintiff Bradley Blair (“Mr. Blair”) claims:

a) Damages in the amount of $7,000,000.00 (SEVEN MILLION DOLLARS) for
wrongful termination, misfeasance in public office, negligence, negligent
misrepresentation, intentional infliction of mental suffering, and breaches of section 2
of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms (“the Charter”);

b) Special damages in an amount to be determined with particulars provided prior to trial;

c¢) Punitive damages in the amount of $4,000,000.00 (FOUR MILLION DOLLARS);

d) Exemplary and/or aggravated damages in the amount of $2,000,000.00 (TWO
MILLION DOLLARS);

€) Pre and post judgment interest pursuant to ss. 128 and 129 of the Courts of Justice Act,
R.S.0. 1990, ¢.C.43;

f) Costs of this action on a substantial indemnity basis; and

g) Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court deems just.

2. The plaintiffs Danielle Blair, Nathaniel Blair, and Ashley Blair claim:

a) Damages pursuant to the Family Law Act, RSO 90, c. F. 3 (“Family Law Act”) in the
amount of $2,000,000.00 (TWO MILLION DOLLARS);

b) Pre and post judgment interest pursuant to ss. 128 and 129 of the Courts of Justice Act,
R.S.0. 1990, ¢.C.43;

¢) Their costs of this action on a solicitor and client basis, with HST payable pursuant to
the Excise Act, R.S.C,, c. E.15; and

d) Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court deems just.



OVERVIEW

“There seemed to be tacit acknowledgment by the Secretary [Orsini] that Mr. French was rooting
for Mr. Taverner’s success. Anyone examining these messages [texts between Orsini/French]
would have serious doubts as to the fairness of the process to the other candidates.”
(Wake Report at para 241, p. 63)

3. Brad Blair blew the whistle on a process rigged to install the Premier’s loyal and unqualified
friend as the new Commissioner for the Ontario Provincial Police. The resulting public
outcry served to ensure that the Premier’s efforts were unsuccessful, but Brad Blair has
suffered the ultimate professional price for doing the right thing: Brad Blair was

professionally ruined.

4. The plaintiff, Mr. Blair, was employed as a Deputy Commissioner with the Ontario
Provincial Police (“OPP”) including holding the rank of interim Commissioner. The plaintiff
served the OPP honourably for thirty-two years. On March 4, 2019, twenty days shy of his
33" anniversary of service, Mr. Blair was terminated from his position. Mr. Blair was fired
as a reprisal for his efforts to shed light on suspected political interference in the functioning
of the OPP, particularly by trying to engage the Ontario Ombudsman in a review of the 2018

OPP Commissioner hiring process (as more particularly described below).

5. At all material times the plaintiff’s actions were driven out of a reasonably held belief that
Premier Ford and his Chief of Staff (assisted by the other named individual defendants) were
attempting to install, as leader of the Ontario Provincial Police, a person who lacked the
qualifications and competence to perform the duties of Commissioner for the improper

purpose of co-opting the country’s second largest police service for political and/or personal



advantage to the Premier. The passage of time and circumstances since Brad Blair’s firing,
including the Integrity Commissioner’s Report and subsequent revelations about other
tainted Government appointments by the Premier and his Chief of Staff, simply reinforces

the sad reality that Blair’s concerns were completely justified.

The actions of the defendants in effecting Brad Blair’s termination are connected in both
time and circumstance to their abandonment of their efforts to install Ron Tavemer as
Commissioner of the OPP. Not only did they occur within days of each other, but the firing
of Mr. Blair occurred amidst numerous groundless public attacks by the Premier on the
character of Mr. Blair. Civil servants sworn to be loyal to the Premier (including those
personally involved in Taverner’s hiring) participated in an unprecedented summary process

to terminate Mr. Blair that remains completely opaque.

The official reason given for Mr. Blair’s retaliatory termination was that he had disclosed
allegedly confidential material through his Divisional Court filings. All of Mr. Blair’s actions
occurred while he was a serving police officer, yet at no time was any investigation under
the governing Police Services Act ever commenced against him nor was he afforded any due
process by way of hearing into his alleged transgressions. This firing stands as an absolute
first in Ontario history in that no police officer has ever been stripped of his status as a peace
officer without resort to the discipline and termination procedures in the legislation that

governs the actions of police officers.

That the termination of Brad Blair was driven out of political retribution is borne out by the
very thin nature of the rationale that the defendants offer for his firing: the inclusion of

confidential materials in his Court filings with the Divisional Court. Despite being served
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with the materials in question on the day of their filing, February 15, 2019 (long before the
materials were accessed by the media in the courts on February 25, 2019), the Attorney
General has never taken a single step to raise their alleged sensitive confidentiality with the

Court or taken any other step to seal the documents.

9. Mr. Blair served notice of this claim on Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario, under
the Proceedings Against the Crown Act on March 28, 2019.

10. The plaintiffs state that the actions of the defendants give rise to claims for wrongful
termination, misfeasance in public office, negligence, negligent misrepresentation,
intentional infliction of mental suffering, Family Law Act damages, and breaches under s.
2(b) of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms.

THE PARTIES
The Plaintiffs
11. The plaintiff Bradley Blair (“Mr. Blair”) is a resident of Ontario. He was employed by the

OPP for close to 33 years. In 2014, by way of Order-in-Council, Mr. Blair was appointed
Deputy Commissioner of the OPP. Also, by way of Order-in-Council, Mr. Blair was
appointed and served, beginning on November 3, 2018, as the Commissioner (interim) of
the OPP, upon the retirement of former Commissioner Hawkes. By way of a further Order-
in-Council dated December 15, 2018, Mr. Blair was removed from his role as interim
Commissioner effective December 17, 2018. On that date, he returned to his former rank of

Deputy Commissioner and remained in that role until his termination on March 4, 2019.



12.

13.

Danielle Blair (“Mrs. Blair”) is a resident of Ontario and is the spouse of Mr. Blair. Mrs.
Blair enjoys a close and loving relationship with Mr. Blair and has suffered the loss of Mr.
Blair’s guidance, care and companionship as a result of Mr. Blair’s wrongful termination.

Mrs. Blair claims damages pursuant to the Family Law Act.

Nathaniel Blair (“Nathaniel”) and Ashley Blair (“Ashley”) are residents of Ontario and are
the adult children of Mr. and Mrs. Blair. Nathaniel and Ashley enjoy a close and loving
relationship with their father, Mr. Blair, and have suffered the loss of Mr. Blair’s guidance,
care and companionship as a result of his wrongful termination. Nathaniel and Ashley each

claim damages pursuant to the Family Law Act.

The Defendants

14.

15.

16.

The defendants Douglas Robert Ford, Mario Di Tommaso, Paul Boniferro, Steve Orsini,
Dean French and Jane/John Doe(s), acting individually and/or collectively, committed the
torts of wrongful termination, misfeasance in public office, negligence, negligent
misrepresentation, intentional infliction of mental suffering, Family Law Act damages and

breaches under section 2(b) of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms.

The defendant the Honourable Premier Douglas Robert Ford (“Premier Ford™) is, and at all

relevant times was, the Premier of Ontario and a resident of Ontario.

The defendant Dean French (“French”) was at all relevant times the Chief of Staff for

Premier Ford and is a resident of Ontario.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The wrongful actions of the Premier and/or the wrongful actions of his Chief of Staff as
plead herein, were at all material times committed both individually and/or in concert with

the knowledge and approval (implied and/or express) of each in respect of the other.

The defendant Deputy Solicitor General (Community Safety) Mario Di Tommaso (“Di
Tommaso” or “Deputy Minister Di Tommaso”) is a resident of Ontario. Since October 22,
2018, he has served as Deputy Minister of Community Safety, now under a different title. In
this role, Di Tommaso is responsible for supervising and/or overseeing the OPP. Di
Tommaso works in the Ministry of the Solicitor General, which until around April 2019 was
the Ministry of Community Safety and Correctional Services (“MCSCS”). By way of Order-
in-Council dated April 11, 2019, Mr. Di Tommaso was named Deputy Solicitor General,
Community Safety, Ministry of the Solicitor General and was appointed Deputy Solicitor
General. Prior to becoming Deputy Minister of Community Safety, Di Tommaso was a Staff

Superintendent with the Toronto Police Service.

The defendant Deputy Attorney General Paul Boniferro (“Boniferro” or “Deputy Attorney
General Boniferro™) is the current Deputy Attorney General of Ontario and a resident of

Ontario.

The defendant Steve Orsini (“Orsini”) is the former Secretary of Cabinet and a resident of
Ontario. On December 14, 2018, Mr. Orsini announced his resignation, which took effect in

early 2019.

The defendants Jane Does (“Jane Doe(s)”) and John Does (“John Doe(s)”) (collectively,

“Jane/John Doe(s)”) are residents of Ontario and were at all material times individuals
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23.

24.

25.
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involved with Mr. Blair’s March 4, 2019, termination. Jane/John Doe(s) are placeholders for

agents of the Crown whose identities are currently unknown to the plaintiffs.

The plaintiffs may refer to the defendants Di Tommaso, French, Boniferro, Orsini, and

Jane/John Doe(s) as civil servants and/or bureaucrats.

THE FACTS

A. General Overview

Mr. Blair served the OPP honourably for thirty-two years, until his termination on March 4,
2019. Immediately prior to his termination, Mr. Blair was employed by the OPP, last serving

as a Deputy Commissioner.

Mr. Blair was fired as a reprisal for his efforts to engage the Ontario Ombudsman in a review
of the 2018 OPP Commissioner hiring process. Throughout late October and November
2018, the Government of Ontario undertook a recruitment and hiring process in order to
select and appoint the next OPP Commissioner (“the OPP Commissioner hiring process”).
Mr. Blair, who held the rank of Commissioner (interim) at the time, was a candidate and

finalist in the OPP hiring process but was not ultimately selected.

On November 29, 2018, the Government of Ontario announced that Superintendent Ron
Taverner (“Supt. Taverner”) of the Toronto Police Service would be the next OPP
Commissioner and would be assuming command on Monday, December 17, 2018. Supt.
Taverner’s installment was subsequently delayed beyond December 17, 2018. Ultimately,

the Premier’s office abandoned its efforts to install Supt. Taverner as Commissioner and he
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withdrew his name from consideration on March 6, 2019. On March 11, 2019, it was
announced that Deputy Chief Thomas Carrique of the York Regional Police would be the

new OPP Commissioner.

The manner in which the OPP Commissioner hiring process was conducted raised concerns
about perceived and/or real political interference in the process. This reality, coupled with
the fact that Supt. Taverner is a close personal friend of Premier Ford, created a cloud of
suspicion concerning political interference and cronyism in the OPP Commissioner hiring
process. Various media reports dating from November 2018 raised the same concerns about

the OPP Commissioner hiring process.

Mr. Blair raised concerns about the OPP Commissioner hiring process by filing a complaint
on December 11, 2018, before the Provincial Ombudsman, Mr. Paul Dubé (“the
Ombudsman”). The complaint (“the Ombudsman Complaint™) stated that permitting Supt.
Tavemer to assume command as Commissioner, without addressing the perceived political
interference, would cause dysfunction in the service and undermine the command of the
OPP. Mr. Blair was motivated out of concern for the independence and effectiveness of the
OPP, and not out of a belief that filing the complaint would open the door to him being

selected as Commissioner.

On both December 12, 2018, and December 13, 2018, the Ombudsman informed Mr. Blair
that he, the Ombudsman, would not review the OPP Commissioner hiring process, claiming
that the matter fell outside his jurisdiction and/or that he would decline to exercise his

jurisdiction. On December 14, 2018, Mr. Blair commenced an application before the
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Divisional Court seeking the determination of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. This

application is still before the Divisional Court.

The defendants Di Tommaso, French, Boniferro, and Orsini all participated in the OPP hiring
process and were therefore identified in Mr. Blair’s December 11, 2018, complaint to the
Provincial Ombudsman. Deputy Minister Di Tommaso also served as Supt. Taverner’s direct

supervisor with the Toronto Police Service for a number of years.

Shortly after Mr. Blair filed the Ombudsman Complaint, Premier Ford made several public
comments alleging that Mr. Blair had, on numerous occasions, breached the Police Services
Act, RSO 1990, ¢ P15, (“PSA”). Mr. Blair has not received notice under the PS4 of any

complaint and/or investigation.

To date, Premier Ford has not issued a full and final retraction of his public allegations which
accused Mr. Blair of breaching the PS4 on numerous occasions. These matters are the
subject of a separate libel action, commenced by Mr. Blair against the defendant Premier

Ford.

On March 4, 2019, Mr. Blair was terminated from employment with the OPP by Di
Tommaso, who authored and personally served the March 4, 2019, termination letter on Mr.

Blair at OPP headquarters in Orillia, Ontario.

This extraordinary step was taken by Deputy Minister Di Tommaso notwithstanding the fact
that Di Tommaso is a key subject of Mr. Blair’s December 11, 2018, complaint to the
Ombudsman for Di Tommaso’s involvement in the OPP Commissioner hiring process,

raising at a bare minimum a perceived conflict of interest.
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Deputy Minister Di Tommaso’s March 4, 2019, termination letter indicates that the

termination was done with the permission of the Public Service Commission.

Boniferro was at all material times a member of the Public Service Commission. Boniferro
did not recuse himself from any deliberations and/or decisions by the Public Service

Commission concerning Mr. Blair’s termination.

The decision to terminate Mr. Blair was retaliation for shedding light on the deep rooted and
systemic practice of cronyism carried out by Premier Ford and/or his Chief Staff, Dean
French. Premier Ford and/or Dean French orchestrated the firing of Mr. Blair and relied on

Di Tommaso and Boniferro to carry out the firing.

Mr. Blair contests the legal validity of his termination. Mr. Blair provided notice of this
position via correspondence of March 6, 2019, addressed to Deputy Minister Di Tommaso.
Mr. Blair pleads that the defendants acted outside the scope of their authority in firing Mr.

Blair in the manner in which they did.

On March 20, 2019, Mr. Blair’s concerns regarding the OPP Commissioner hiring process
were confirmed in a report issued by the Provincial Integrity Commissioner, the Honourable
David J. Wake (“Commissioner Wake”). In response to complaints by Members of
Provincial Parliament in December 2018, Commissioner Wake conducted an investigation
into whether Premier Ford breached the Members’ Integrity Act in appointing Supt. Taverner
as OPP Commissioner. The Office of the Integrity Commissioner issued a press release on
December 18, 2019, confirming that Commissioner Wake was conducting an investigation.
While Commissioner Wake ultimately dismissed the allegations against the Premier,

Commissioner Wake made many critical findings regarding this province’s most senior
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bureaucrats and confirmed that the OPP Commissioner hiring process was rigged by senior

bureaucrats.

Commissioner Wake’s report provides a detailed account of these bureaucrats’ significant
problematic involvement in the OPP Commissioner hiring process, including the following
findings: the OPP Commissioner hiring process was “flawed” (para. 242, pg. 63); “[i]n fact,
the process was not independent” (para. 239, pg. 62); there existed “a preference [...] given
to one candidate” (para. 240, pg. 62); and “[a]nyone examining these messages [between
Secretary of Cabinet Orsini and the Premier’s Chief of Staff, Dean French] would have
serious doubts as to the fairness of the process to the other candidates”, meaning candidates

other than Supt. Taverner (para 241, pg. 63).

It is a gross injustice that Mr. Blair, a person who has dedicated close to 33 years to the OPP,
has been fired for raising concerns about the OPP Commissioner hiring process that were
subsequently confirmed in Commissioner Wake’s March 20, 2019, report. While the Wake
Report is replete with key inculpatory information of government corruption, absolutely no
consequences of any kind have been directed by the Integrity Commissioner in respect of

any public official.

Mr. Blair pleads that his termination was unlawful, deliberate, and conducted in bad faith.
Mr. Blair did not receive a modicum of due process in his termination. Mr. Blair was
summarily fired without notice, without an opportunity to know the case against him,
without an opportunity to reply, and without a hearing, all of which were required under the

PSA. Further, Mr. Blair pleads that his termination was reprisal for his raising of concerns
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about the OPP Commissioner hiring process before the Ombudsman. Mr. Blair further pleads

that the termination was an attempt to silence him in violation of his s. 2(b) Charter rights.

Premier Ford has made numerous false public allegations that Mr. Blair has breached the
PSA. These allegations have no basis in fact and were promulgated with the intention of

discrediting Mr. Blair and providing a basis for Mr. Blair’s termination, in bad faith.

Deputy Minister Di Tommaso and Deputy Attorney General Boniferro have engaged in
significant conflicts of interest by their simultaneous involvement in the OPP Commissioner
hiring process, which was a subject of Mr. Blair’s December 11, 2018, complaint to the
Provincial Ombudsman, and their participation in the firing of Mr. Blair. The conduct of

these senior civil servants was unlawful, deliberate, and conducted in bad faith.

B. Overview of OPP Commissioner Hiring Process

In early September 2018, former Commissioner Hawkes announced his retirement, to take
effect in November 2018. While former Commissioner Hawkes and then Deputy Minister
of Community Safety, Matt Torigian (“Deputy Minister Torigian™) wanted to name Deputy
Commissioner Gary Couture as interim Commissioner, the Premier’s office and Cabinet
decided otherwise and Mr. Blair became Commissioner (interim) of the OPP on November

3, 2018.

In early- to mid-September, 2018, Deputy Minister Torigian was told by Orsini to find new
work and leave the position of Deputy Minister of Community Safety. On October 1, 2018,
the Premier, without holding a hiring competition, appointed Di Tommaso as the new

Deputy Minister of Community Safety, effective October 22, 2018. One of Deputy Minister
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Di Tommaso’s responsibilities was to assist with the OPP Commissioner hiring process.
Prior to being named Deputy Minister of Community Safety, Di Tommaso was a Staff
Superintendent with the Toronto Police Service, where he supervised his friend Supt.
Taverner for several years. Di Tommaso’s policing rank was lower than that of previous

Deputy Ministers.

On October 22, 2018, MCSCS published a posting for the position of Commissioner of the
OPP (“the original posting”). On October 24, 2018, only two (2) days after the original
posting was made and Di Tommaso assumed his role as Deputy Minister of Community

Safety, the job posting was modified (“the modified posting”).

The significant difference between the two postings was that the required qualifications were
considerably lowered in the modified posting from what they had been in the original
posting. Specifically, the minimum rank requirement that featured in the original posting —
a requirement of “Deputy Police Chief or higher, or Assistant Commissioner or higher in a
major police service” — was absent in the modified posting. The modified posting only

required candidates to be an “experienced executive with a background in policing.”

The public rationale given by the Premier and the Minister of MCSCS, Sylvia Jones
(“Minister Jones”), for the elimination of the minimum rank requirement was that the job
posting was modified “to broaden the potential pool of applicants”. Mr. Blair pleads that the
rationale was in fact more focused: that the job posting was modified to enable Toronto

Police Service Supt. Taverner to apply.

On November 9, 2018 the Public Service Commission and the Executive Development

Committee (“EDC”) met to approve the short list of candidates and the composition of the



50.

51.

52.

53.

17

interview panel. Deputy Attorney General Boniferro and Orsini were members of the Public
Service Commission. The EDC is responsible for executive-level talent management for the
OPS. It comprises the same members as the Public Service Commission but its Chair is the
Secretary of the Cabinet. Orsini was therefore Chair of the EDC at the time. The EDC meets
at the same time as the Public Service Commission. Salvatore (Sal) Badali (“Mr. Badali”) (a
Partner at the search firm, Odgers Berndtson, that was engaged to assist with the hiring
process) and a colleague of Mr. Badali’s joined part of the meeting via telephone to explain

the recruitment process.

First-round interviews were held on November 12, 2018. The interview panel consisted of
three people: Deputy Attorney General Boniferro; Mr. Badali; and Deputy Minister Di

Tommaso.

Only three candidates received second-round interviews: a senior employee with the OPP
other than Commissioner Blair;. Commissioner Blair; and Supt. Taverner. The candidates

were interviewed in that order.

Second-round interviews were held on November 20, 2018. In advance of the second-round
interviews, Commissioner Blair was informed that the interview panel would consist of the
following people: Dean French, the Premier of Ontario’s Chief of Staff; Orsini, who was

then Secretary of Cabinet; Deputy Minister Di Tommaso; and Sal Badali.

In advance of his second-round interview, Mr. Blair saw Dean French leave the building
where the interview was being held. Approximately ten minutes prior to the beginning of
Commissioner Blair’s second-round interview, Mr. Blair was informed that Mr. French

would no longer be participating in the second-round interview panel.
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54. Throughout the interview process, Sal Badali informed Mr. Blair on numerous occasions
that he, Mr. Badali, had no input or decision-making power regarding the hiring for the next

OPP Commissioner.

C. The Government of Ontario Announces Appointment of Supt. Taverner as OPP
Commissioner

55.  On November 29, 2018, the Government of Ontario announced that Supt. Taverner of the
Toronto Police Service would be the next OPP Commissioner and would be assuming

command on Monday, December 17, 2018.

56. The OPP Commissioner hiring process was rigged in favour of Supt. Taverner, but the
defendants and the Government of Ontario attempted to ensure a public appearance of

impartiality to cloak the decision in legitimacy.

57. It was widely reported that Supt. Taverner is a long standing, close family friend of Premier
Ford and the Ford family. Deputy Minister Di Tommaso is also a friend of Supt. Taverner

and his former boss.

58. Supt. Taverner was offered an annual salary at the top end of the salary grid for the position
of Commissioner, even though he had little to no management experience of the level one

would expect for the head of North America’s third-largest deployed police force.

59. Ultimately, Supt. Taverner did not assume command of the OPP. Supt. Taverner withdrew

his name from consideration on March 6, 2019, and on March 11, 2019, it was announced
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that Deputy Chief Thomas Carrique of the York Regional Police was the new OPP

Commissioner.

D. Supt. Taverner Appointment Causes Widespread Public Concern Regarding

Independence and Integrity of the OPP; Premier and Senior Cabinet Ministers Maintain
OPP Hiring Process was Conducted by Senior Bureaucrats and Deny it was Flawed

Following the public announcement of Supt. Taverner as the new OPP Commissioner, public
concern mounted regarding the independence of the OPP Commissioner hiring process. In
response to public pressure, Members of the Cabinet made public comments (captured in
Hansard) maintaining that Cabinet was not involved in the hiring process or hiring decision.
They maintained that Cabinet had merely endorsed the hiring decision arrived at by an
independent hiring panel. The mounting public concern regarding the OPP Commissioner
hiring process led to two key events: (1) Mr. Blair raised concerns about the flawed OPP
hiring process before the Ombudsman; and (2) Members of Provincial Parliament filed

complaints before the Provincial Integrity Commissioner.

E. Mr. Blair Raises Concerns Regarding OPP Hiring Process & Supt. Taverner

Appointment via Complaint Before Provincial Ombudsman

On December 11, 2018, Mr. Blair, in both his former capacity as the Commissioner (interim)
of the OPP, and his personal capacity as a final candidate in the OPP hiring process, filed
the Ombudsman Complaint. In the complaint, Mr. Blair raised concerns about the real and/or
perceived political interference and cronyism that were impacting the independent

operations of the OPP.
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Mr. Blair’s Ombudsman Complaint received widespread public attention due to the
significant and serious allegations raised by Mr. Blair concerning political interference; the
fact that the allegations concern the Premier of Ontario; the fact that Supt. Taverner’s close
relationship with Premier Ford was already the subject of significant media attention at the
time; and the fact that there were irregularities in the OPP Commissioner hiring process,
including the lowering of qualifications for the OPP Commissioner position which made it

possible for Supt. Taverner to compete for the position.

The Ombudsman declined to review the OPP Commissioner hiring process. The
Ombudsman communicated this in writing to Mr. Blair on December 12, 2018, and again
on December 13, 2018. As a result, on December 14, 2018, Mr. Blair commenced a
Divisional Court application seeking a determination of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. This

application remains before the Divisional Court.

F. Provincial Integrity Commissioner Conducts Review and Renders Findings Regarding

the Inappropriate Involvement of Senior Bureaucrats in Flawed OPP Hiring Process

As a result of requests from NDP Member of Provincial Parliament (“MPP”’) Kevin Yarde
and a request by Liberal MPP and interim leader John Fraser, Commissioner Wake
conducted an investigation pursuant to section 31 of the Members’ Integrity Act. The
requests for investigation included requests based on section 2 of the Members’ Integrity
Act, which prohibits MPPs from making a decision, or participating in making a decision,
“in the execution of his or her office if the member knows, or reasonably should know, that
in the making of the decision, there is an opportunity to further the member’s private interest

or improperly to further another person’s private interest.”
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On March 20, 2019, Commissioner Wake released his report on his investigation into

whether Premier Doug Ford breached the Members’ Integrity Act in the appointment of his

long-time friend, Supt. Taverner. Commissioner Wake dismissed the allegations against the

Premier; however, Commissioner Wake made many damning findings relating to this

province’s most senior bureaucrats, including the defendants in this action, as summarized

below:

a)

b)

d)

Commissioner Wake’s report provides a detailed account of the significant

involvement of senior bureaucrats in the “flawed” (para. 242, pg. 63) process;

Commissioner Wake’s report states that “[i]n fact, the process was not independent”

(para. 239, pg. 62);

Commissioner Wake’s report states that there existed “a preference [...] given to one

candidate” (para. 240, pg. 62);

Commissioner Wake’s report examined the text messages between Orsini and the
Premier’s Chief of Staff, Dean French, and concludes that “[a]lnyone examining these
messages would have serious doubts as to the fairness of the process to the other

candidates” (para 241, pg. 63); and,

Commissioner Wake’s key findings regarding a biased recruitment process are

excerpted below (emphasis added):

[239] I accept Premier Ford’s evidence that he stayed at arm’s length from the
recruitment process and that he believed it was independent. In fact, the process was
not independent as the Secretary stated in his evidence. The Secretary correctly
noted that he was deputy minster to the Premier which is a position he held at
pleasure. It was for that reason that he objected to public announcements that the
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selection process was independent and insisted that it be referred to as a hiring
recruitment process [...].

[240] I find that there were some troubling aspects to the process that may have
led, perhaps unintentionally, to a preference being given to one candidate. In
coming to this conclusion, I have considered the following:

1.

As a result of his interactions with the Premier’s Office over the offer of a
position with the OCS [Ontario Cannabis Store], the Secretary was made aware
that the Premier thought highly of Mr. Taverner;

Mr. Torigian’s evidence that the Secretary told him that he felt ‘pressure’ to
hire Mr. Taverner cannot be ignored even though the Secretary does not believe
he was under any pressure from the Premier or his office. To some extent, Mr.
Torigian’s evidence is supported by Mr. Boniferro, who stated that he first
heard of Mr. Taverner’s name when the Secretary made a comment that the
Premier’s Office might suggest that he be offered a deputy minister role but that
the Secretary thought it would be more appropriate for him to apply for the OPP
Commissioner position. It does at least suggest that the Secretary was aware of
the interest that the Premier and his office had in Mr. Taverner early on in the
process;

The fact that the Secretary reached out to Mr. Taverner on LinkedIn on October
17 before the OPP Commissioner position had even been advertised
demonstrates an elevated interest in Mr. Taverner;

This same level of interest was evident two days later when the Secretary sent
Mr. Taverner’s name to Mr. Badali as someone who might be interested in the
position of OPP Commissioner without having first met him; and

According to the Secretary, Mr. French revealed his friendship with Mr.
Taverner, if it was not already known, on November 19, the day before the
second round of interviews. Although Mr. French disagrees that this was the
basis for his recusal, the point is that the Secretary believed that Mr. French had
a sufficiently close relationship with Mr. Taverner that he had to recuse himself
from the same interview panel as the Secretary. At the very least there existed
a potential for the Secretary to be predisposed favourably towards Mr. Taverner
as a result of this belief.

[241] What I found most disconcerting in all the evidence were the text messages from
the Secretary to Mr. French as to Mr. Tavemer’s progress throughout the
process. There seemed to be tacit acknowledgment by the Secretary that Mr.
French was rooting for Mr. Taverner’s success. Anyone examining these
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messages would have serious doubts as to the fairness of the process to the other
candidates.

[242] I appreciate that the principles of natural justice, including procedural fairness,
may not apply to a recruitment process for a cabinet appointment. This will be
discussed later in the “Opinion” section of this report. At this stage I am making
findings of fact. After considering all of the evidence immediately above I find that
I have a reasonable apprehension that the recruitment process was flawed. (pp.
62-63)

G. Reprisal and Conflicts of Interest: Premier Ford Promulgates Widespread Public
Allegations that Mr. Blair Breached the Police Services Act and Submitted Retirement
Papers to the OPP; Involved in Revocations

Shortly after Mr. Blair filed his December 11, 2018, complaint before the Ombudsman, and
the same day Commissioner Wake publicly announced that he was conducting an
investigation, Premier Ford began making public comments alleging that Mr. Blair had
breached the PS4A. On December 18, 2018, while participating in a media scrum at

Amazon’s new Toronto offices, Premier Ford made the below verbal comments.

“I could sit here and give you all the items that weren’t accurate in that letter and
there’s endless ones. I could give you a list of all the Police Act that was broken
throughout that whole letter, but none of you want to report on that.”

“So what I’m going to do is take the high road and I’'m going to let the review go
through.”

“We’re looking forward to Ron Taverner becoming the OPP commissioner.”

“Let’s get through the review and see what happens.”
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“Brad Blair, first he put in his retirement papers in, then he pulled them back again.
I get it, not a problem. I get it that he’s upset he didn’t win a fair process. I
understand. Did he step over the line on a lot of things? I’m going to let the media
decide that and I wish you would look into that.”

The letter that Premier Ford is referring to in the above quotes is Mr. Blair’s Ombudsman

Complaint.

The Premier’s December 18, 2018, remarks were captured on video and widely

rebroadcasted on television, print media and the internet.

As a result of the Premier’s allegations of breaches of the PS4 and the Premier’s statement
that Mr. Blair had submitted retirement papers, counsel for Mr. Blair was forced to issue the

following Press Statement:

STATEMENT FROM JULIAN FALCONER

While as legal counsel for Deputy Commissioner Blair, I will not be following up with
additional comments today. The following is a statement in respect of Premier Ford’s
comments of today.

“A simple inquiry of the OPP would bear out that Deputy Commissioner Blair has
never, and I repeat never, submitted retirement papers. This is simply a falsehood.

As for the personal shots by the Premier, no amount of intimidation or insult will
deter the Deputy Commissioner from seeking a full airing of these issues.”
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70.  Mr. Blair (who at the time was Deputy Commissioner) felt that Premier Ford was trying to
intimidate and bully him into silence, in a context where there was a reasonable expectation

that Mr. Blair would be called as a witness before Commissioner Wake.

71. Starting in mid-December 2018, Mr. Blair’s legal counsel made several efforts to determine
whether or not a PS4 complaint and/or investigation against Mr. Blair had been made, as

follows:

a) On December 19, 2018, Mr. Blair’s counsel wrote to Minister Jones. This
correspondence was also copied to Premier Ford, Attorney General Caroline Mulroney,

Deputy Attorney General Boniferro, and Deputy Minister Di Tommaso, among others;

b) No response was received to the December 19, 2018, letter. Mr. Blair’s counsel sent a
follow-up letter on December 24, 2018, addressed to Minister Jones and Attorney

General Caroline Mulroney, and copied to Premier Ford, among others;

¢) Neither Premier Ford, Minister Jones, Attorney General Mulroney, nor Deputy
Attorney General Boniferro responded to the December 19, 2018, or the December 24,
2018, correspondences. On December 28, 2018, Mr. Blair received correspondence
from Deputy Minister Di Tommaso which is discussed further below and did not
address Mr. Blair’s inquiries of the existence of any PS4 complaint and/or

investigation.

72.  Despite the above efforts, Mr. Blair has never received notice under the PS4 of a complaint
and/or investigation regarding his conduct, nor have any of the above addressees to various

correspondences provided any particulars of the same.
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Nevertheless, Premier Ford continued to make public allegations that Mr. Blair had breached
the PSA. On January 14, 2019, Premier Ford was interviewed by both Global TV News and
CP24 News, while in Detroit, Michigan, attending an automotive show, and Premier Ford
made the below statements. The Premier’s statements were malicious in that the Premier was
aware at the material time that Mr. Blair had not been provided any notice of complaint
and/or investigations under the PSA4, and/or the Premier did not take reasonable steps to

ascertain the truth of his defamatory remarks prior to making them.

To Global TV News:

“I’'m thoroughly disappointed with Brad Blair, the way he’s been going on,

breaking the Police Act numerous times. It’s disturbing to say the least.”

To CP24 News:

“It’s unfortunate that one person has sour grapes, and it is very disappointing
actually, and reacting the way he’s been reacting and breaking the Police Act

numerous times. Someone needs to hold him accountable, I can assure you that.”

To date, Mr. Blair has not received notice under the PS4 of a complaint and/or investigation
regarding his conduct. Further, there have been no findings that former Deputy
Commissioner Blair has in any way breached any provision of the PS4, in particular, nor are
there any findings against him of misconduct, in general. Mr. Blair’s termination was not
conducted pursuant to the PSA. The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair ought to have been

provided with the protections and rights under the PSA4 before he could be legally terminated.

Additionally, the Premier was involved in the decisions to revoke the Orders-in-Council
that (a) appointed Mr. Blair interim Commissioner, and (b) appointed Mr. Blair Deputy

Commissioner. The revoking Orders-in-Council were issued on December 15, 2018, and



76.

77.

78.

79.

27

March 4, 2019, respectively. The plaintiffs plead that these actions, too, were a form of

reprisal.

H. Reprisal and Conflicts of Interest: Senior Civil Servants Intimately Involved in OPP

Hiring Process & Mr. Blair’s March 4, 2019, Termination

Senior civil servants were intimately involved in the OPP Commissioner hiring process. The
defendants Deputy Minister Di Tommaso, Deputy Attomey General Boniferro, former
Secretary of Cabinet Orsini and Chief of Staff French all participated in the OPP
Commissioner hiring process. They were therefore all identified in Mr. Blair’s Ombudsman

Complaint.

On December 14, 2018, Premier Ford filed written submissions to the Integrity
Commissioner wherein Premier Ford repeatedly asserts that the OPP Commissioner hiring
process was executed by senior civil servants. These civil servants presented a single
recommendation to Cabinet and Cabinet rubber-stamped this recommendation. Premier
Ford’s December 14, 2018, submission to the Integrity Commissioner states that the 2018
recruitment of the OPP Commissioner was planned and coordinated through the Office of

the Secretary of Cabinet, Mr. Steve Orsini, alongside the MCSCS.

On the same date as Premier Ford’s written submission to the Integrity Commissioner (i.e.

December 14, 2018), Orsini announced his resignation.

On December 28, 2018, Deputy Minister Di Tommaso issued a warning letter to Mr. Blair,
writing in his capacity as the Deputy Head and Ethics Executive for the OPP. Deputy

Minister Di Tommaso’s letter explicitly indicates that this letter was not intended to be
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disciplinary in nature but it goes on to remind Mr. Blair of his obligations as a public servant
to maintain confidentiality of information that comes to his attention by virtue of his service
as a public servant. Deputy Minister Di Tommaso’s letter directly refers to Mr. Blair’s

Ombudsman Complaint.

On January 2, 2019, Mr. Blair’s legal counsel wrote to legal counsel for the MCSCS, Mr.
Brian Loewen (“Mr. Loewen”). Counsel raised concermns about Deputy Minister Di
Tommaso’s lack of impartiality and conflict of interest in providing written warnings to Mr.
Blair in the nature of his December 28, 2018 letter, given the fact that Deputy Minister Di
Tommaso was a key subject of Mr. Blair’s December 11, 2018, complaint to the

Ombudsman.

On January 4, 2019, Mr. Loewen wrote to Mr. Blair’s legal counsel and advised that Deputy
Minister Di Tommaso had sought advice from the Provincial Conflict of Interest
Commissioner regarding his continued oversight over Mr. Blair and therefore was of the

opinion that no conflict existed.

On January 13, 2019, Mr. Blair’s legal counsel wrote to Mr. Loewen seeking clarification as
to what information was provided to the Conflict of Interest Commissioner in seeking his
advice. To date, Mr. Blair has not received any response to this January 13, 2019,

correspondence.

On March 4, 2019, Deputy Minister Di Tommaso personally attended at the OPP
headquarters in Orillia, Ontario, in order to serve Mr. Blair with a termination letter authored
by Deputy Minister Di Tommaso. Deputy Minister Di Tommaso took this extraordinary step

notwithstanding the conflict of interest arising from the fact that he is a key subject of Mr.
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Blair’s Ombudsman Complaint. As already stated, Mr. Blair took steps, via counsel, to
advise Deputy Minister Di Tommaso of this conflict of interest; however, Deputy Minister

Di Tommaso never recused himself from oversight over Mr. Blair.

Deputy Minister Di Tommaso’s March 4, 2019, termination letter cites the Divisional Court
filings as a contravention of Mr. Blair’s obligations under the Conflict of Interest regulation
pursuant to the Public Service of Ontario Act (“PSOA”) and a violation of his oath of office.
Deputy Minister Di Tommaso’s March 4, 2019, termination letter also refers to his own
December 28, 2018, letter as further grounds for Mr. Blair’s termination, notwithstanding
the fact that the December 28, 2018, letter clearly states that it is non-disciplinary in nature.
Deputy Minister Di Tommaso dismissed Mr. Blair from employment pursuant to section 34
of the PSOA, effective immediately. For clarity, Deputy Minister Di Tommaso did not rely

on the PS4 to effect Mr. Blair’s termination despite Mr. Blair being a sworn police officer.

The termination letter indicates that the termination was done with the permission of the
Public Service Commission. Deputy Attorney General Boniferro was at all material times a
member of the Public Service Commission. Deputy Attorney General Boniferro participated
in the first-round interviews of the OPP Commissioner hiring process and is a key subject of
Mr. Blair’s complaint before the Ombudsman and the related Divisional Court application.
Deputy Attorney General Boniferro did not recuse himself from any deliberations and/or

decisions by the Public Service Commission concerning Mr. Blair’s termination.

Minister Jones, the Solicitor General, did not direct or participate in the decision to terminate

Mr. Blair.
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Mr. Blair pleads that these actions by the defendant civil servants are reprisal and an attempt
to muzzle Mr. Blair, and that this reprisal is directly connected to Mr. Blair’s good faith

efforts to seek redress before the Divisional Court and the Provincial Ombudsman.

Further, the plaintiffs plead that at no point in time has any interim nor the current
Commissioner of the OPP instructed Mr. Blair to cease from continuing the application

before the Divisional Court or any other legal proceeding.

1. Mr. Blair Contests Legal Validity of March 4, 2019, Termination

The day after Mr. Blair filed his application with the Divisional Court, and within days of
filing his Ombudsman Complaint, Mr. Blair was returned to his former position as a Deputy
Commissioner when then-Deputy Commissioner Gary Couture was appointed to the role of
interim Commissioner effective December 17, 2018. Mr. Blair returned to his rank of Deputy
Commissioner because Order-in-Council 598/2017 appointed him Deputy Commissioner of
the OPP, to serve at the pleasure of the Lieutenant Governor in Council for a period not to

exceed March 22, 2020.

On March 4, 2019, Mr. Blair was terminated from employment and his Order-in-Council
(598/2017) appointment as Deputy Commissioner was revoked effective the same day by
way of Order-in-Council (277/2019). The plaintiffs plead that, if Order-in-Council 277/2019
is valid, Mr. Blair should have been returned to his prior rank as Chief Superintendent, which
rank Mr. Blair held at the point of issuance of Order-in-Council 221/2014, dated February

12, 2014, which first appointed him Deputy Commissioner.
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On March 6, 2019, Mr. Blair’s legal counsel wrote to Deputy Minister Di Tommaso to
inform him that the legal validity of the termination was in question, as there had been no
process initiated or completed pursuant to the PSA. This letter of March 6, 2019, informed
Deputy Minister Di Tommaso that Mr. Blair expected to resume his duties with the OPP as
a Chief Superintendent. In the alternative, Mr. Blair would seek to retire from the OPP, with
all the rights and privileges that would normally be afforded to him, had Mr. Blair retired

from the position of Deputy Commissioner of the OPP with close to 33 years of service.

The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair’s termination was unlawful, deliberate, and conducted in
bad faith and not in accordance with the rule of law. Mr. Blair contests the legal validity of
his March 4, 2019, termination under the PSOA and seeks damages for wrongful termination

on three broad grounds:

a) the discipline of all sworn police officers is governed by the PSA. Mr. Blair remains
without notice of any complaint and/or investigation under the PS4, and could not be

legally terminated unless procedures set out in the PS4 were followed,;

b) the purported grounds for Mr. Blair’s termination are contested; and,

¢) senior civil servants involved in Mr. Blair’s termination were also the subject of Mr.
Blair’s complaint before the Ombudsman. The defendant senior civil servants’ actions
are a reprisal against Mr. Blair who was validly seeking the independent review before
the Provincial Ombudsman and a determination of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction
before the Divisional Court. As acts of reprisal, the civil servants’ actions in firing Mr.
Blair, an OPP officer, also constitute unwarranted interference in the operations of the

OPP, thereby posing a threat to the rule of law. Further, the actions of these defendant
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senior civil servants were conducted while said defendants were under significant

conflicts of interest, as already detailed above.

Additionally, Mr. Blair contests the validity of the Order-in-Council of March 4, 2019, which
revoked the Order-in-Council appointing him Deputy Commissioner. The revocation of his
appointment was a reprisal, effected without any procedural fairness, and constituted

capricious exercise of public authority.

1. The discipline of all sworn police officers is governed by the PSA

The plaintiffs plead that the discipline of all sworn police officers is governed by the PSA.
Mr. Blair swore an oath of office under the PS4 in order to become a sworn police officer,
employed by the OPP. The PSA provides that it is the Commissioner of the OPP who has
the general control and administration of the OPP and the employees connected with it. Mr.
Blair was at all material times relating to his termination an employee connected with the

OPP.

Once sworn, Mr. Blair satisfied the definition of a “police officer” under the PSA4. As a sworn
police officer, Mr. Blair retains that status until either resignation or dismissal from the OPP.
Resignation and dismissal of OPP officers occurs through the statutory scheme set out in the
PSA. Further, the plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair retains his status as a sworn police officer,

regardless of any appointments or rescission of appointments via Order-in-Council.

Mr. Blair did not resign; rather, Mr. Blair was terminated, purportedly for cause, on March

4, 2019. As detailed further below, Mr. Blair contests his termination for cause.
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The statutory scheme governing discipline of all police officers was not followed in the
termination of Mr. Blair. Mr. Blair was summarily fired without notice, without an
opportunity to know the case against him, without an opportunity to reply, and without a
hearing, all of which is required under the PSA. Further, Mr. Blair pleads that his termination
was a reprisal for his raising of concerns about the OPP Commissioner hiring process before
the Provincial Ombudsman. The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair formed the reasonable
expectation that should an Order-in-Council appointment be revoked, he would revert to his

prior rank as Chief Superintendent and retain his status as a sworn police officer.

The plaintiffs plead that Part V of the PS4 provides a complete statutory framework for

disciplining sworn police officers. These protections include:

a) The right to notice of a complaint (s. 76(3));

b) The right to a hearing (s. 76(9)) governed by the procedural protections of the Statutory

Powers Procedure Act (s. 83(1));

¢) The right to notice of the hearing (s. 83(4));

d) The right to counsel (s.83 (4));

e) The right to disclosure of the case against him (s. 83(5));

f) The right to findings made on a clear and convincing evidentiary basis (s. 84(1)); and

g) The right to an appeal to the Ontario Civilian Police Commission.
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The plaintiffs plead that the only appropriate route to lawfully dismiss Mr. Blair was through
Part V of the PS4 and that the process and protections guaranteed by Part V of the PS4 were

not afforded to Mr. Blair.

Additionally, the plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair’s appointment as Deputy Commissioner
could not be legally revoked via Order-in-Council without him being provided procedural
fairness. Procedural fairness required providing Mr. Blair with the safeguards set out in Part

V of the PSA.

ii. The purported grounds for Mr. Blair’s termination are contested

The purported grounds for Mr. Blair’s termination are identified in the March 4, 2019,

termination letter. Those grounds are:

a) The court materials filed before the Divisional Court in respect of Mr. Blair’s
application seeking a determination of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction to investigate Mr.
Blair’s December 11, 2018, complaint. The identified concern with these court filings
is that they contained confidential information obtained during the course of Mr. Blair’s
employment, that Mr. Blair failed to comply with the defendant Di Tommaso’s
direction regarding confidential information, and that this disclosure is a contravention
of obligations under the PSOA and a violation of Mr. Blair’s oath of office under the

PS04,

b) That Mr. Blair furthered his private interests by using his professional status and that

this is a contravention of the Conflict of Interest regulations under the PSOA,;
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¢) That the above-identified concerns have ruptured the trust underlying the employment

relationship; and

d) That accordingly, Mr. Blair is dismissed pursuant to section 34 of the PSOA by Di
Tommaso exercising authority delegated to him under section 44 of the PSOA, effective

immediately, with the permission of the Public Service Commission.

The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair was a highly regarded employee and held an exemplary

employment record with the OPP.

The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair did not breach any confidentiality provisions and did not

violate any oath of office.

Mr. Blair pursued the December 11, 2018, complaint before the Ombudsman and the related
Divisional Court application seeking a determination of the jurisdiction of the Ombudsman.
Mr. Blair is not prevented from seeking such available avenues for his December 11, 2018,
complaint by virtue of the position(s) he held. A complaint to the Ombudsman and a
Divisional Court application are remedies available to Mr. Blair and he pursued them in good

faith.

The defendants have never indicated with any specificity which court documents are of
concern. The plaintiffs plead that a portion of the court documents were already in the public
realm and were not initially disclosed by Mr. Blair. Secondly, the plaintiffs plead that a
portion of the court documents were not subject to any confidentiality provisions due to the

manner by which they were transmitted to the plaintiff, Mr. Blair.
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106. In the alternative, if some or all of these records are deemed confidential, the plaintiffs plead

107.

that there was justification for the disclosure. The plaintiff Mr. Blair served as the highest-
ranking member of the OPP at the time of filing his Ombudsman Complaint. The complaint
raised bona fide concerns about the independence and integrity of the OPP and therefore
about the rule of law in this Province, and no other member of the OPP was in a position to
raise such significant and serious concerns. The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair could not have
raised these concerns with the defendant Di Tommaso as this defendant was involved in the
hiring process as a member of both the first- and second-round interview panels. The
plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair owed a duty to protect the integrity and independence of the
OPP, in particular as a consequence of the position Mr. Blair held. The plaintiffs plead that
Mr. Blair discharged that obligation and exercised his rights to raise concerns before the
Ombudsman and through the related Divisional Court Application. In short, Mr. Blair acted
as a whistleblower raising concerns through official channels about cronyism, abuses of
public office, and potentially-jeopardized independence of the OPP at a time when such

concerns were widely raised by the media and widely shared by the public.

The plaintiffs plead that once Mr. Blair was removed from his position as interim
Commissioner of the OPP, no Commissioner thereafter (interim or otherwise) ever
instructed Mr. Blair to cease from continuing his Ombudsman Complaint or the related
Divisional Court Application. Mr. Blair expressly pursued these legal avenues in both his
personal and professional capacity. The plaintiffs plead that it was within the powers of the
OPP command to direct Mr. Blair to cease his proceedings commenced in Mr. Blair’s former

professional capacity, but that no such direction was ever issued.
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Further, Mr. Blair’s materials for both the Ombudsman Complaint and the Divisional Court
Application were provided and/or served on high-ranking members of the Provincial
Government and/or the Attorney General’s office, as the case may be. This notice was given
out of an abundance of caution and to ensure awareness of the proceedings commenced by
Mr. Blair. The plaintiffs plead that there were available remedies to seal court materials from
the public realm, and that no party (or prospective party) has ever brought a motion to seal

such records or to prevent Mr. Blair from pursing his proceedings in a professional capacity.

The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair was never directed by the defendant Di Tommaso,
including by way of Di Tommaso’s letter of December 28, 2018, to refrain from pursuing
proceedings before the Provincial Ombudsman or at the Divisional Court. Mr. Blair was
never told at any time that his actions in starting and/or continuing to pursue proceedings
before the Provincial Ombudsman or at the Divisional Court could lead to his termination.
Further, the plaintiffs plead that the defendant Di Tommaso never recused himself from
direct oversight of Mr. Blair, notwithstanding the conflicts of interest, and that the plaintiff
Mr. Blair never consented to the defendant Di Tommaso’s oversight, given this defendant’s

obvious conflict of interest.

The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair did not further his private interests by using his
professional status. Mr. Blair expressly pursued proceedings before the Ombudsman and the
Divisional Court as a consequence of two facts: (1) that Mr. Blair was the interim
Commissioner at the time of his Ombudsman Complaint; and (2) Mr. Blair was a finalist
candidate in the OPP hiring process. The plaintiff, Mr. Blair, maintains and has always
maintained that his actions were undertaken in the service of preserving the OPP’s integrity

and independence. Mr. Blair has pursued legal avenues at great personal cost: Mr. Blair has
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been publicly and falsely accused of breaching the PSA; Mr. Blair has been publicly and
falsely accused of submitting retirement papers to the OPP; and Mr. Blair has been publicly
and wrongfully terminated from a 33-year career with the OPP. Mr. Blair has not personally
benefitted from pursuing these legal avenues, nor has Mr. Blair held any expectation of

benefitting personally from his actions.

The plaintiffs repeat and rely on the facts pleaded aforesaid that senior civil servants were
intimately involved in the OPP Commissioner hiring process and the above-described March
4, 2019, termination of Mr. Blair. The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair’s March 4, 2019,
termination was an act of reprisal by the civil servant defendants acting out of blind loyalty

to the Premier of the Province of Ontario.

Finally, the plaintiffs plead that the Order-in-Council revoking Mr. Blair’s appointment as
Deputy Commissioner was issued on the basis of the capricious exercise of public power

and is therefore invalid.

J. Tainted Appointments by the Ford government

The Defendants, specifically Premier Ford and French, acting alone and/or in concert, each
with the knowledge and authority (implied and/or express) of the actions of the other, have
engaged in a pattern of appointments of multiple close personal friends and family members
to various ministries, agencies and councils with little or no regard to appropriate protocol
or issues around conflict of interest. These appointments include but are not limited to the

following;:
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e Superintendent Ron Taverner as OPP Commissioner. Superintendent Taverner is a
long-time, close friend of Premier Ford. Superintendent Taverner became eligible to
apply for the position of OPP Commissioner only after the qualifications were
lowered following the posting for the job. In the face of public outcry over the
Premier’s efforts to install his friend as Commissioner, the Premier’s office
abandoned its efforts to appoint him and Superintendent Taverner ultimately

withdrew his name for consideration as the OPP Commissioner;

e Tyler Albrecht as Agent-General for New York. Mr. Albrecht is a close personal
friend of Mr. French who played lacrosse with Mr. French’s son. Mr. Albrecht
lacked the qualifications for the job and resigned after the connection between him

and French was made public;

e Taylor Shields as Agent-General for London. Ms. Shields is a relative of Mr. French.
Ms. Shields resigned from the position after the familial relationship between her and

Ms. French;

e Peter Fenwick as Strategic Transformation Advisor. Mr. Fenwick was an insurance
customer of Mr. French for over two decades. After this relationship was made

public, Mr. Fenwick was fired, and the position eliminated,

e Andrew Suboch as Chair, Justices of the Peace Appointments Advisory Committee.
Mr. Suboch is close personal friend of Mr. French. After their relationship was made

public, Mr. Suboch resigned from the position;
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e Appointees to the Public Accounting Council, the regulatory body for accountants in
Ontario: These appointments, in the discretion of the Government of Ontario, come
with significant financial compensation paid by the regulatory body. In the case of
Katherine Pal, appointed as a member of the Council, she is the niece of Dean French.
Once the familial relationship was made public, Ms. Pal resigned from the position.
In the case of Gavin Tighe, he is a lawyer in good standing with long time
professional and/or personal connections to the Ford family including representing
both the Premier and Dean French before the Integrity Commissioner. He remains
in his position as Chair of the Council earning a six figure salary in excess of

$160,000.00 per year for performing part time work as Chair.

e Mario Di Tommaso as Deputy Solicitor General. Di Tommaso was first appointed as
the Deputy Minister of Community Safety. Di Tommaso was appointed after former
Deputy Minister Matthew Torigian was forced out of the position by Premier Ford
and French. Di Tomasso was appointed without any competition for the position. The
last three Deputy Ministers of Community Safety all held the rank of Deputy

Chief/Commissioner or Chief of Police prior to taking the position.

LIABILITY OF THE DEFENDANTS
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114. The plaintiffs rely on the facts as pled aforesaid in the following actionable claims. Further,

the plaintiffs rely on the following indicia of bad faith and high-handedness by the

defendants in the following actionable claims.

115. The plaintiffs plead that the civil servant defendants acted in bad faith in the conduct of Mr.

Blair’s termination, as follows:

a)

b)

d)

The civil servant defendants Di Tommaso, French, Boniferro, Orsini and Jane/John
Doe(s) rigged the OPP hiring process in favour of Supt. Taverner while pretending the

process was fair and impartial;

Premier Ford and/or French orchestrated the termination of Mr. Blair as retaliation for
his unmasking of corrupt and inappropriate appointments made by Premier Ford and/or

French;

The civil servant defendants Di Tommaso, French, Boniferro, and Jane/John Doe(s)
individually and/or collectively conducted Mr. Blair’s termination on false grounds,
without due process, and without legal authority. Mr. Blair was summarily fired
without notice, without an opportunity to know the case against him, without an
opportunity to reply, and without a hearing. The requirements for discipline and

termination of a sworn police officer under the PS4 were not met;

The civil servant defendants Di Tommaso, French, Boniferro, and Jane/John Doe(s)
individually and/or collectively conducted Mr. Blair’s termination without any due
regard to the lack of a PS4 complaint and/or investigation and without any due regard

to Mr. Blair’s exemplary 33-year career with the OPP;
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€) The civil servant defendants Di Tommaso, Boniferro, Jane/John Doe(s) individually
and/or collectively conducted Mr. Blair’s termination while knowingly in conflicts of
interest, while failing to recuse themselves from the conflicts of interest, and as a form
of reprisal intended to dissuade Mr. Blair from pursuing concerns about the

independence and integrity of the OPP in good faith;

f) The civil servant defendants Di Tommaso, Boniferro, Orsini, and Jane/John Doe(s)
individually and/or collectively stonewalled Mr. Blair when he explicitly raised
concerns regarding, inter alia, the irregularities in the OPP hiring process; the false
allegations by the defendant Premier Ford of PSA breaches and the submission of

retirement papers by Mr. Blair; and the conflicts of interest by these defendants;

g) The defendant Di Tommaso’s only correspondence to Mr. Blair, dated December 28,
2018, expressly stated the correspondence was a non-disciplinary letter; however, the
defendant Di Tommaso relied on the same correspondence as a ground for Mr. Blair’s

termination; and

h) The defendant Di Tommaso took the extraordinary step of personally attending OPP
Headquarters in Orillia, Ontario, in order to personally terminate Mr. Blair and serve

him with the March 4, 2019, termination letter.

116. The plaintiffs plead that the defendant Premier Ford and/or French acted in bad faith in the
conduct of Mr. Blair’s termination by promulgating an ex post facto pretense for Mr. Blair’s
wrongful termination by publicly and widely accusing Mr. Blair of having breached the PS4
and of having filed retirement papers with the OPP. The plaintiffs plead that this conduct

was done deliberately in order to discredit and tarnish Mr. Blair’s reputation and in order to
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provide a false pretense for Mr. Blair’s termination. The plaintiffs plead this conduct was a
reprisal for Mr. Blair’s efforts to seek transparency and accountability in relation to the OPP

Commissioner hiring process.

A. Wrongful Termination

117. The plaintiffs plead that the only route to lawfully dismiss a sworn police officer is through
Part V of the PS4 and that the protections guaranteed in Part V of the PS4 were not afforded

to Mr. Blair.

118. The plaintiffs plead that Mr. Blair was wrongfully terminated as follows and as further

outlined at paragraphs 74-109 of this claim:

a) the discipline of all sworn police officers is governed by the PSA4. Mr. Blair remains
without notice of any complaint and/or investigation under the PS4, and could not be

legally terminated unless procedures set out in the PSA were followed;

b) there were no valid or good faith grounds to terminate Mr. Blair’s 33-year employment

with the OPP; and

¢) senior civil servants involved in Mr. Blair’s termination were also the subject of Mr.
Blair’s complaint before the Provincial Ombudsman raising significant conflicts of

interest and reprisal.

B. Misfeasance in Public Office
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119. All the defendants are holders of public office. In the case of the defendant Steve Orsini, Mr.

120.

Orsini was a holder of public office at all material times, up until his effective date of

resignation.

In particular, and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the plaintiffs state that

the defendant civil servants deliberately violated the law individually and/or collectively, by

inter alia:

a)

b)

d)

improperly using their public authority to rig the OPP hiring process in favour of one

candidate, Supt. Taverner, a friend of the Premier’s;

unlawfully terminating Mr. Blair without legal justification under the PSOA and

without any due process owed to all sworn police officers under the PSA4;

conducting an unlawful termination, while engaged in significant and serious conflicts
of interest as subjects of Mr. Blair’s Ombudsman Complaint and Divisional Court

Application and participants in Mr. Blair’s termination;

concurrently failing to recuse themselves from all deliberations concerning Mr. Blair’s

employment as a consequence of the aforementioned conflicts of interest;

conducting an unlawful termination with improper intent and as a form of reprisal
against Mr. Blair. The improper intent was to dissuade and/or punish Mr. Blair for
raising good faith concerns about the independence and integrity of the OPP and/or
raising concerns about the particular conduct of the defendant civil servants and/or the
defendant Premier Ford in the OPP Commissioner hiring process.

The improper intent was to dissuade and punish Mr. Blair from pursuing these concerns



45

in formal venues before the Ombudsman and the Divisional Court. There was a
relationship of cause and effect between (1) Mr. Blair’s raising of concerns before the
Ombudsman and the Divisional Court and (2) Mr. Blair’s termination, conducted by

the civil servant defendants; and

in conducting themselves as pled aforesaid, acting outside of any valid legal authority

which they may possess.

121. In particular, and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the plaintiffs state that

the defendant Premier Ford deliberately violated the law, by inter alia:

a)

b)

d)

falsely accusing Mr. Blair of having breached the PSA via widespread, public

comments;

falsely accusing Mr. Blair of having submitted retirement papers while an employee of

the OPP;

furnishing ex post facto pretenses for a wrongful termination by falsely accusing Mr.

Blair of having breached the PS4;

publicly commenting about the private and confidential employment matters of a swormn

police officer;

breaching section 95 of the PS4 which requires confidentiality in respect of all aspects

of PSA matters; and
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f) capriciously exercising his public authority for unauthorized purposes, namely
reprisal, relating to the Order-in-Council revoking Mr. Blair’s appointment as Deputy

Commissioner.

122. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the plaintiffs state that the defendants
acted contrary to the rule of law by: acting outside the scope of their legal authority; firing
Mr. Blair in an arbitrary manner; and interfering in the operations of the OPP by firing Mr.
Blair, an OPP officer, without regard to the procedural requirements set out in the Police

Services Act, as reprisal for his insistence on defending the independence of the OPP.

123. The plaintiffs plead that the aforementioned unlawful conduct was deliberately carried out
by the defendant civil servants and the defendant Premier with the knowledge that the
conduct is unlawful and that the conduct was likely to cause injury and harm, compensable

under the law.

C. Negligence

124. The plaintiffs state that the defendants owed a duty of care to Mr. Blair.

125. The plaintiffs state that this duty of care is a consequence of the public positions and
positions within the civil service, as the case may be, which are/were held by the defendants,

and by their proximity to Mr. Blair.

126. The plaintiffs state that the defendants, acting collectively and/or individually, breached that

duty of care.
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In the case of the defendant Premier Ford, this defendant breached the duty of care by
publicly issuing false allegations against Mr. Blair regarding breaches of the PS4 and
regarding the submitting of retirement papers by Mr. Blair. The plaintiffs plead that such
allegations were made with the full knowledge that the assertions were not true. In the
alternative, the plaintiffs plead that the defendant Premier Ford made these false allegations

recklessly, without reasonable care, and without any regard to the truth.

In the case of the civil servant defendants, these defendants breached their duty of care by,
individually and/or collectively, (a) inviting Mr. Blair to participate in a rigged hiring process
and (b) terminating Mr. Blair on false grounds and without the necessary due process owed
to a sworn police officer under the PSA. Further, the plaintiffs plead that these defendants
breached their duty of care owed to Mr. Blair by terminating Mr. Blair while under
significant conflicts of interest. The particular conflict of interest is that the defendants Di
Tommaso and Boniferro were both identified subjects of Mr. Blair’s December 11, 2018,
complaint to the Provincial Ombudsman and individuals involved in Mr. Blair’s termination.

The plaintiffs plead that these defendants acted with reprisal against Mr. Blair.

The plaintiffs state that the defendants collectively and/or individually breached the duty of
care owed to Mr. Blair and accordingly are liable in negligence to Mr. Blair. The plaintiffs
state that the injuries Mr. Blair suffered arose as a direct result of the negligence of the
defendants, individually and/or collectively. The plaintiffs state that the negligent actions
and/or inaction of the defendants as pled herein each and/or collectively caused the injuries
to Mr. Blair, a consequence the defendants knew or ought to have known would occur as a

result of such negligence.



48

D. Negligent Misrepresentation

130.

131.

132.

133.

134.

The plaintiffs plead a claim in negligent misrepresentation against the defendant Di

Tommaso in the manner of Mr. Blair’s termination, as follows.

The defendant Di Tommaso relied on a non-disciplinary letter dated December 28, 2018,
and Mr. Blair’s proceedings before the Ombudsman and Divisional Court as grounds for Mr.

Blair’s March 4, 2019, termination.

In response to the defendant Di Tommaso’s December 28, 2018 letter, Mr. Blair immediately
notified the defendant Di Tommaso that he, Di Tommaso, was in a conflict of interest by the
combined fact of defendant Di Tommaso’s purported oversight over Mr. Blair and the fact
that Mr. Blair raised concerns about this defendant’s involvement in the OPP Commissioner
hiring process before the Ombudsman/Divisional Court. The defendant Di Tommaso did not

recuse himself from this conflict of interest.

Mr. Blair continued to pursue the Provincial Ombudsman complaint and the related
Divisional Court application relying on the defendant Di Tommaso’s express written
statement that the December 28, 2018 correspondence was non-disciplinary and the

defendant Di Tommaso’s lack of recusal from conflict of interest.

The defendant Di Tommaso’s purported grounds for terminating Mr. Blair included reliance
on the December 28, 2018, non-disciplinary correspondence and Mr. Blair’s proceedings
before the Ombudsman and the Divisional Court. By the conduct pleaded aforesaid, the
plaintiffs plead that the defendant Di Tommaso misrepresented the grounds upon which Mr.

Blair was terminated.
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135. The plaintiffs state that the above misrepresentations have been detrimental to Mr. Blair and
that they have ultimately led to the summary termination of Mr. Blair’s 33-year career with

the OPP.

E. Intentional Infliction of Mental Suffering

136. In particular, and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the plaintiffs state that
the defendants individually and/or collectively caused mental distress by the intentional
conduct pleaded aforesaid. The plaintiffs further state that the defendants knew or ought to
have known that this unlawful conduct would cause mental distress to Mr. Blair. Further, the
plaintiffs state that Mr. Blair suffered mental distress, embarrassment and loss of reputation

as a direct result of the defendants’ deliberate and/or reckless conduct.

137. The plaintiffs state that the defendants’ conduct was for the purpose of injuring Mr. Blair
and/or that the defendants were aware of the effect of their conduct but nevertheless

continued in that conduct.

138. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, Mr. Blair has suffered and continues to
suffer mental distress from the very public impact of the incidents described above. This
suffering includes, infer alia, emotional, psychological and/or mental trauma;

embarrassment; loss of reputation; and economic loss.

F. Breaches of Section 2(b) of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms

139. The plaintiffs state that the defendants are additionally liable for violations of Mr. Blair’s

rights pursuant to section 2(b) of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms, by virtue
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of the facts pleaded aforesaid. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, Mr. Blair

was deprived of his rights to the fundamental freedoms of thought, belief, opinion and

expression protected by section 2(b) of the Charter.

In particular, and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the plaintiffs plead that

Mr. Blair was deprived of his 2(b) Charter rights as follows:

a)

b)

d)

Mr. Blair was exercising his 2(b) Charter rights by pursing a complaint before the

Ombudsman, and the related Divisional Court Application;

The plaintiffs plead that both proceedings were commenced and continued in good

faith, with the objective of protecting the independence and integrity of the OPP;

The plaintiffs plead that the defendants had a personal interest in discouraging Mr. Blair
from pursuing those proceedings and in punishing him, and that they did both these
things. Their discouragement included, inter alia, purporting to exercise oversight over
Mr. Blair via the December 28, 2018 letter authored by the defendant Di Tommaso;
falsely accusing Mr. Blair of breaching the PS4 and submitting retirement papers, with
such false accusations made by the defendant Premier Ford; and, ultimately,
terminating Mr. Blair on March 4, 2019, with the termination conducted by the

defendant Civil Servants; and

The plaintiffs plead that this conduct by the defendants was reprisal against Mr. Blair
for seeking bona fide remedies before the Ombudsman and the Divisional Court, in

good faith.

DAMAGES
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The plaintiff Mr. Blair seeks reinstatement of employment with the OPP at the rank of

Deputy Commissioner.

In the alternative, Mr. Blair seeks reinstatement of employment with the OPP at the rank of

Chief Superintendent.

In the further alternative, Mr. Blair seeks payment of his full severance entitlement for 33
years of service with the OPP culminating with his rank as Deputy Commissioner, as well

as compensation for his 88 banked vacation days.

The plaintiff Mr. Blair claims damages against all defendants, including general, special,
compensatory, punitive and aggravated damages, including but not limited to
Honda/Wallace damages for bad faith, and pre- and post-judgment interest, resulting from
the above actionable wrongs. Further, the plaintiff Mr. Blair pleads and relies upon section
24(1) of the Charter and states that Mr. Blair is additionally entitled to a remedy that this

Honourable Court considers appropriate and just in the circumstances.

The plaintiffs may be put to moving and relocating expenses in order to secure suitable
and/or similar replacement employment, the full particulars of which shall be supplied at or

prior to trial.

The plaintiffs have mitigated their damages, the particulars of which shall be provided at or

prior to trial.

The plaintiffs Mrs. Blair, Nathaniel, and Ashley each claim damages under the Family Law

Act, RSO 90, c. F. In particular, Mrs. Blair, Nathaniel, and Ashley each enjoyed a close and
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loving relationship with Mr. Blair and have suffered the loss of Mr. Blair’s guidance, care

and companionship as a result of his wrongful termination.

148. The plaintiffs request costs of this action on a substantial indemnity basis together with the

applicable HST.

149. The plaintiffs plead and rely on:

a) The Courts of Justice Act, RSO 1990, c C.43;

b) the Police Services Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. P.15;

¢) the Public Service of Ontario Act, 2006, S.0. 2006, c. 35 Sched. A;

d) the Proceedings Against the Crown Act, RSO 1990, c P27;

€) the Ombudsman Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. O.6;

f) the Negligence Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. N.1;

g) the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms;

h) the Family Law Act, RSO 90, c. F.; and,

i) the Integrity Commissioner’s Report, dated March 20, 2019.

150. The plaintiffs propose that this action be tried in the City of Toronto and be heard together

with Court File No: CV-19-00616339-0000.

DATE: September 13, 2019 FALCONERS LLP
Barristers-at-Law
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10 Alcorn Avenue, Suite 204
Toronto, Ontario M4V 3A9
Tel.: (416) 964-0495
Fax: (416) 929-8179

Julian N. Falconer (L.S.O. No. 29465R)
Asha James (L.S.0O. No. 56817K)

Counsel for the Plaintiffs
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